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I. INTRODUCTION

This Administrative Complaint, Compliance Order and Notice of Opportunity for
Hearing ("Complaint") is issued pursuant to the authority vested in the Administrator of the
UnitedlStates Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA" or the "Agency") by Section 9006
[federJifacililies only - and 9007(a)] of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, commonly referred to as
the Red~urce Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended by the Hazardous and Solid
Waste ~mendments of 1984 (collectively "RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6991 e [and 6991 f], and the
Consor dated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and
the Re ocationiTermination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22 ("Consolidated Rules of
Practic "), a copy of which is enclosed with this Complaint (Enclosure "A").

he Director of the Land and Chemicals Division of U.S. EPA Region IIJ
("ComJ!llainant"), hereby notifies Andrea Simmons in her capacity as the Executrix of the Estate
of Rog~tl: Fussellf'Respondent") that EPA has Teas!)" t!) believe-that Respondent has violated
SUbtitld I of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6991-6991 i, and the State of West Virginia's federally
authori~ed underground storage tank program with respect to the underground storage tanks at
Respon ent's facility located at Route 219/250 South, Beverly, West Virginia (the "Facility").
Section 9006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991e, authorizes EPA to take enforcement action, including
issuing a compliance order or assessing a civil penalty, whenever it is determined that a person is
in viol ion of any requirement of RCRA Subtitle I, EPA's regulations thereunder, or any
regulati n of a state underground storage tank program which has been authorized by EPA.



......... IOn April 10, 1996 pursuant to Section 9004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991c, and 40 C.F.R.
Part 2~1, Subpart A, the State of West Virginia was granted final authorization to administer a
state jderground storage tank management program in lieu of the Federal underground storage
tank anagement program established under Subtitle I of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§6991-699Ii. The
author zation of West Virginia's underground storage tank program became effective on July I,
1996'jThe provisions of West Virginia's authorized underground storage tank program

. regula ions, set forth in West Virginia's Underground Storage Tank Regulations ("WVUSTR"),
which ncorporate by reference the federal underground storage tank program regulations set
forth a 40 C.F.R. Part 280 (1995 ed.), have become requirements of Subtitle I of RCRA and are,
accordingly, enforceable by EPA pursuant to Section 9006 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991e. A
copy orthe authorized WVUSTR, Parts 33-30-1 through 33-30-4.6, and the federal underground
storag tank program regulations, 40 C.F.R. Part 280 (1995 ed.), are enclosed with this
Compl int (Enclosure B). The authorized West Virginia underground storage tank regulations
are cit d as the legal basis for EPA's Complaint along with the incorporated provisions of the
federal regulations.

Section 9006(d) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 699Ie(d), authorizes EPA to assess a civil penalty
.. agai·~sfanyowner or operator of an underground storage tank who fails to comply with, inter

alia, af/Y requirement or standard promulgated under Section 9003 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991b
(40 c.~ .R. Part 280) or any requirement or standard of a State underground storage tank program
that has been approved by EPA pursuant to Section 9004 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991c.

EPA has given the State of West Virginia notice of the issuance of this Complaint in
accord nee with Section 9006(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991 e(a)(2).

In support of this Complaint, the Complainant makes the following allegations, findings
of fact nd conclusions of law:

II. COMPLAINT
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

In accordance with the Consolidated Rules ofPractice at 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and
22.18( )(2) and (3), Complainant makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law:

1. The United States Environmental Protection Agency's Office of Administrative
Law Judges has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to RCRA Section 9006(a)
and (d), 42 U.S.C. § 6991e(a) and (d), and 40 C.F.R. § 22. I(a)(4) and A(c).

2. Andrea Simmons, Executrix of the Estate of Roger G. Fussell, is a "person" as
defined by WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12), Section 9001(5) of
RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991(5).



3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

I

Roger G. Fussell is andlor was, the "owner" andlor the "operator" of ~.
"underground storage tanks" ("USTs"), as these terms are defined in Section 9001
of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991, and WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.1 (40 C.F.R.
§ 280.12) located at the Facility. '

Roger G. Fussell died testate on December 21,2009 and Roger G. Fussell named
his daughter, Andrea Simmons, as the Executrix of his Last Will and Testament.

Andrea Simmons, as the Executrix of the Estate of Roger G. Fussell is, at the tim
of the violations alleged in this Complaint, the "owner" and/or the "operator" of
"underground storage tanks" ("USTs"), as these terms are defined in Section 9001
of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991, and WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.1 (40 C.F .R.
§ 280.12) located at the Facility.

,
On September 21,2010, an EPA representative conducted an inspection of the
Facility pursuant to Section 9005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991d.

At the time of the September 21.2010 inspection, and at all times relevant hereto,
four (4) USTs, as described in the following subparagraphs, were located at the
Facility:

A. a ten thousand (10,000) gallon steel tank that was installed in or about
1990 and that, at all times relevant hereto, routinely contained diesel, a
"regulated substance" as that term is defined in WVUSTR Section 33-30­
2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12) (hereinafter "USTNo. I");

B. an eight thousand (8,000) gallon steel tank that was installed in or about
1990 and that, at all times relevant hereto, routinely contained gasoline, a
"regulated substance" as that term is defined in WVUSTR Section 33-30­
2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12) (hereinafter "UST No.2"); and

C. a six thousand (6,000) gallon steel tank that was installed in or about 1990
and that, at all times relevant hereto, routinely contained gasoline, a
"regulated substance" as that term is defined in WVUSTR Section 33-30­
2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12) (hereinafter "UST No.3"); and

D. a six thousand (6,000) gallon steel tank that was installed in or about 1990
and that, at all times relevant hereto, routinely contained diesel, a

- - - ~'regulated substance" as tharterm is defined-itTWVt:JS'fR~eetion33-30­
2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12) (hereinafter "UST No.4").

USTs Nos. I through 4, referenced in the immediately preceding Paragraph, are
"petroleum UST systems" and "new tank systems" as defined in WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12).



9. USTs Nos. 1 through 4 were, at all times relevant to this Compliant, used to store
and routinely contained "regulated substance(s)" at Respondent's Facility, as
defined in Section 9001(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991(2), and WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.1 (40 C.F.R. § 280.12). '

10. Pursuant to RCRA Section 9005, 42 U.S.c. § 6991d, on January 19,2011, EPA
issued an Information Request to Respondent concerning its petroleum ;UST
systems at the Facility.

COUNT 1
(Failure to perform release detection on

USTs Nos. 1 through 4)

I

11. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this Complaint are incorporated
herein by reference. I

12. Pursuant to WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. § 280040(a) and (c), owners and operators of new and existing UST
systems must provide a method or combination of methods of release detection
monitoring that meets the requirements described therein.

13. WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280041 (a) provides, in pertinent part, that USTs shall be monitored at least
every 30 days for releases using one of the methods listed in WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280043(d) through (h),
except that '

,
(1) UST systems that meet the performance standards in WVUSTR, Section

33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.20
(Performance Standards for New UST Systems) or WVUSTR Section 33­
30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 (Upgrading
of Existing UST Systems), and the monthly inventory control
requirements in WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280043(a) or (b) (Inventory Control or Manual Tank
Gauging), and tank tightness testing, conducted in accordance with
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280043(c) (Tank Tightness Test), at least every 5 years until December
22, 1998, or until 10 years after the UST is installed or upgraded under
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280.21(b) (Tank Upgrading Requirements); and

,
,



,
I
!,

I !
(2) UST systems that do not meet the perfonnance standards in WVUSTR

Section 33-3,0-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.20
(Perfonnance Standards for New UST Systems) or WVUSTR Section 33­
30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 (Upgrading
of Existing UST Systems), may use monthly inventory controls,
conducted in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates:,by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(a) or (b) (Inventory Control
or Manual Tank Gauging) and annual tank tightness testing, co'nducted in
accordance ~ith WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40C.F.R. § 280.43(c) (Tank Tightness Test) until D~cember 22,
1998, when the tank must be upgraded under WVUSTR Section 33-30­
2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 (Tank

,

Upgrading Requirements) or pennanently closed under WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1 ~hich incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71; and

I !, I
(3) Tanks with a', capacity of 550 gallons or less and not metered may use

weekly tank gauging, conducted in accordance with WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(b).

I ,
I '

14. From at least September 21,2010 until May 4. 2011, Respondent's UST No.1 at
the Facility has not been monitored in compliance with any of the methods set
fonh in WVUSTR S~ction 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280.41 (a)(1 )-(3) arid/or WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(d)-(h).

I
I

15. From at least September 21,2010 until at least the filing of this Complaint,
Respondent's USTs Nos. 2 through 4 at the Facility have not been monitored in
compliance with any:ofthe methods set forth in WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.41 (a)(1 )-(3) and/or WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(d)-(h).

I ' '
16. Respondent's acts an~/or omissions as alleged in Paragraphs 14 and 15. above,

constitute violations by Respondent of WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by rejer~nce 40 C.F.R. § 280.40(a) and (c) and WVUSTRSection
33-30-2.2.1 which iniorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.41 (a). '

I COUNT 2
(Failure to perfonn automatic line leak detector testing annually on

iUSTs Nos. I through 4)

I

17. The allegations of Pli1'agraphs I through 16 of this Complaint are incorporated
herein by reterence. I

,



(i)

(ii)

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

i
I

i

I
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 CTR.
§ 280AI (b)( I) provides, in pertinent part, that underground piping thai conveys

I '
regulated substances under pressure must:: i

: \

Be equipped! with an automatic line leak detector conducted in !accordance
with subdivikion I of WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates

I 'by referenw40 CF.R. § 280A4(a); and, I
Have an annlal line tightness test conduc;ed in accordance with
WVUSTR S6ction 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R.
§ 280A4(b) 6r have monthly monitoring conducted in accordance with
WVUSTR S~ction 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280A4(c). \ ' :

: I

WVUSTR Section 3\3-30.2.2.1 which incorporat~s by reference 40 C~.R.
§ 280A4(a) provides, in pertinent part, that an annual test of the operation of the
leak detector must be conducted in accordance with the manufacturer's
requirements. I !

,

From at least Septerryber 21, 2010 until May 4, 2011, the piping for US,T No.1
was underground and routinely conveyed regulated substances under pressure.

I . :
From at least September 21 , 20 I 0 until at least the filing of this Complaint, the
piping for USTs No~. 2 through 4 was underground and routinely conveyed

I I

regulated substancesIunder pressure. i

Respondent failed to'perfonn an annual test ofthc automatic line leak detectors
for the underground piping for UST No. 1 from September 21, 2010 until May 4,

I
201 I. \

i
Respondent failed tOiperfonn an annual test of the automatic line leak detectors
for the underground piping for USTs Nos. 2 through 4 from at least September 21,
2010 until at least the filing of this Complaint. : !

Respondent's acts Jd/or omissions as alleged in Paragraphs 22 and 23
1
, above,

constitute violations by Respondent ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
,

incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. § 280AI(b)(1)(i) and WVUSTR Section 33-
30-2.2.1 which incorPorates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280A4(a). I

I COUNT 3
(Failure to perfonn line tightness testing or monthly monitoring on

pipihg for USTs Nos. 1 through 4)
I

25. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 24 of this Complaint are incorporated
herein by reference. I ' i

I !
i

I



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

i
From at least September 21, 2010 until May 4, 2011, Respondent failed to
perform an annuallihe tightness testing in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-

I

30-2.2.1 which incOl'porates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(b) or have monthly
monitoring conducte~ in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorJ?orates .by refe~ence 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(c) f?r the underground piping
assocIated with UST1NO. 1. i. \.

. I
• I

From at least September 21,2010 until at least the filing of this Complaint,
Respondent failed to l perform an annual line tightness testing in acc.ordance with
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280.44(b) or have fuonthly monitoring conducted in accordance with'WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 ~hich incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(c) for the
underground piping ~ssociated with USTs Nos. 2 through 4. \

I i
Respondent's acts add/or omissions as alleged in Paragraphs 26 and 27

1

, above,
, .

constitute violations by Respondent ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by refer~nce 40 C.F.R. § 280.4I(b)(l)(ii), and WVUSTR Section 33­
30-2.2.1 which incor),orates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(b) and (c).

! i
! '

I COUNT 4 i
(Failure to test cathodic protection system on USTs Nos. I through 4) I

. I . j

Paragraphs I throug~ 28 of this Complaint are incorporated by referen~e as if f
fully set forth herein.l: I

'I i
WVUSTR Section 3~-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F,.R.
§ 280.3 I(b)(1 ) provilles that all UST systems equipped with cathodic protection

I •

system must be tested for proper operation within 6 months of installation and at
least 3 years thereaft~r by a qualified cathodic protection tester. I

I '

USTs Nos. Ithrough ~ are and were, at the time of the violations alleged herein,
"steel UST systems with corrosion protection" and were used to store regulated
substances within the!! meaning ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.31. : i

!I I
From at least Septem\Jer 21, 2010 until May 4, 2011, Respondent failed to
conduct a test of the cathodic protection system as required by WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1 which intorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.31(b)(1) ~or the
UST No.1 at the Facility. i

I :

I :

From at least September 21, 2010 until at least the filing of this Complaint,
Respondent failed to bonduct a test of the cathodic protection system as required
by WVUSTR Sectiori 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280.31(b)(I) for thd USTs Nos. 2 through 4 at the Facility. i

I I
I .

II



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Respondent's acts and/or omissions as alleged in Paragraphs 32 and 33, above,
constitute violations Iby Respondent ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by refetence 40 C.F.R. § 280.31 (b)(1). I

1 I
COUNTS I I

(Failure to Provide Financial Assurance)

The allegations in plagraPhS I through 34, abovl, are incorporated herein hy
reference as though fully set forth at length herein. I

I I I
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. §§ 280.90
through 280.112, which provide, in pertinent part, that owners and ope*ators of
petroleum UST syst~ms are required, with exceptions not relevant hereto, to
demonstrate financial responsibility for taking corrective action and fo~,

compensating third Jarties for bodily injury and property damage caus~d by
accidental releases aiising from the operation of petroleum USTs. Subject to the
limitations set forth ip 40 C.F.R. §§ 280.94, incorporated by reference into
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1, an owner or operator may demonstrate financial
responsibility using dny of the mechanisms set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 280.95
through 280.103. :, \

From at least September 21,2010 until at least the filing of this Comphiint,
Respondent did not d'emonstrate financial responsibility for USTs Nos.'1 through
4 by any of the meth6ds set forth in 40 C.F.R.§§ 280.95 through 280.103,
incorporated by referknce into WVUSTR Section ~3-30-2.2.1. I
Respondent's acts anh/or omissions as alleged in ~aragraph 37, above, bonstitute
a violation by Resporident of WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1. '

I

. COUNT 6 I \

(Failure to permanently close UST sysrems) I
The allegations in pJagraPhS I through 38, above, are incorporated he;ein by
reference as though f~lly set forth at length herein. !

\ I •

WVUSTR Section 33:-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.I'.R.
§ 280.70, owners and Ioperators of an UST system that is temporarily closed for
more than 12 months Imust permanently close the UST system in accordance with
WVUSTR Section 33'130-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F:R.
§ 280.71 ifit does not meet either the performance standards in WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 Jhich incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.20 for new
UST systems or the u~grading requirements in WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21, with exceptions not relevant

h' I Ito t IS case. : I



45.

41.

42.

44.

i

I

Pursuant to WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. § 280.71, in 6rder to permanently close an UST system, the owher or
operator must empty and clean the UST by removing all liquids and a~cumulated
sludges from the UST, and remove the UST from the ground or filled ~ith an

, ,
inert solid material., : I

i I
On or before June 30, 2006, the USTs at the Facility were placed into ;'temporary
closure" within the /neaning ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates

I , I
by reference 40 C.F,!R. § 280.70. I I

From at least June 3\0, 2006 until the date of this homplaint, the USTsiat the
Facility did not mee~ the performance standards in WVUSTR Section :33-30-2.2.1
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.20 for new UST systems or the
upgrading requirem~nts in WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 for the UST systems. I

I ,

By July 1,2007, th(j USTs at the Facility were required to be permanently closed,
in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporate~by
reference 40 C.F.R., § 280.71. i

,
Upon information and belief, from at least September 21,2010 until at least the
filing ofthis Complkint, Respondent did not remove the UST systems/rom the
Facility from the gr6und or fill the tJST systems wilh an inert solid material and
thus did not permanbntly close the UST systems as required by WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1 which ihcorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71. i

'I ' I, . I

Respondent's acts and/or omissions as alleged in Paragraph 45, above; constitute
a violation by Resp6ndent of WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates
by reference 40 c.F.i.R. § 280.71. 'I' I

:1 i

:IICOMPLIANCE ORDER I. i
, I
i !

Pursuant to Section 9006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991e, Respondent is herebx ordered to:

47. Within forty-five (4
1

5) days of the effective date of this Compliance O~der,
comply with the rel~ase detection requirements of WVUSTR Section ;33-30-2.2.1
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280AO(a) and (c) for all UST

I ,

systems 10cated-at-the'Facihty subject to this Complaint or close such UST
systems in accordarice with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71. !

i

46.

43.

48. Within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of this Compliance Order,
conduct a test of thd line leak detector for USTs Nos. I through 4, and thereafter
remain in complianbe with line leak detector testing requirements of WVUSTR

, !
,
!



49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

i
, I

Section 33-30-2.2.1, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(a) or
close such UST systems in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which

I ' Iincorporates by refe~ence 40 C.F.R. § 280.71. I
,I ' ,

Within forty-five (4i5) days of the effective date of this Compliance O~der.
conduct a line tightrless testing in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(b) or have monthly
monitoring conduct6d in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which

I Iincorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.44(c) for USTs Nos. 1 through 4,
thereafter remain in 'fompliance with line leak detector testing requirerrents of
WVUSTR Section ~13-30-2.2.1 which incorporat~s by reference 40 C.J;.R.
§ 280.42(b)(I) or close such UST systems in accordance with WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1 which iAcorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71. I

!\ 'i '
: !

Within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of this Compliance Order,
complete measures tb ensure that the corrosion protection systems for USTs Nos.
1 through 4 are oper~ted and maintained in accordance with WVUSTR Section

I '33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.31 (a) or close such
UST systems in accdrdance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by refe~lence 40 C.F.R. § 280.71. ' I

I ,
, , ,

Within forty-five (4V days of the effective date ophis Compliance Order,
complete measures to ensure that the corrosion protection system for USTs Nos I

-through 4 are tested for proper operation by a qualified cathodic protec:tion tester
in accordance with \yVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.31(b)(I) or upgrade the cathodic protection system for
USTs Nos I through[4 in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by refer,ence 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 (b)(2) or close such UST systems in
accordance with WVlUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by/eference
40 C.F.R. § 280.71. ' ! II

i I

I
Within forty-five (45\) days of the effective date of this Compliance Orller,
demonstrate compliapce with the financial responsibility requirements ,in
accordance with WVIUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. §§ 280.90 through 280.112 for all UST systems located at the Fflcility or
close such UST syst~ms in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by referbnce 40 C.F.R. § 280.71.: i. '

II :

-If-Respendent-eleets t{Jclose BflY~ all of the USTs subject to this Co~pliance
Order, Respondent clust submit to EPA, within fifteen (15) calendar d~ys after the
effective date of this ,F::0mpliance Order, a notice of intent to permanently close,
identifying which U~T(s) Respondent intends to close. Such notice shall be sent
to Debra Moody at tHe address set forth below. A copy of such notice shall also

I ' •
be sent to WVDEQ at the address set forth below. j

, ,
I '



54.

55.

56.

I
! I

Within sixty (60) da s of the effective date of this Compliance Order, submit to
EPA a report which Ilocuments and certifies Respondent's compliance 'with the
terms of this complilmce Order. :

'I I '

Any notice, report, Jertification, data presentation', or other document s~bmitted
by Respondent pursJant to this Compliance Order which discusses, de~cribes,

;1 "
demonstrates, supports any finding or makes any representation concerning

I , ,

Respondent's compliance or noncompliance with 'any requirement of this
Compliance Order shall be certified by the executor or executrix of Respondent.

II I
The certification req6ired above shall be in the following form: II

I 'f h h' ,,1,1. . d' :. h' [ 'fcertl y t at t e mJO,rmatlOn contame m or accompanymg t IS type 0,

submission] is true, .lccurate, and complete. As to [the/those] identified
portions of this [typ~ of submission] for which I cannot personally verify
[its/their] accuracy, I, certify under penalty oflaw that this [type of II'

submission] and all attachments were prepared in 'accordance with a ,
system designed to aksure that qualified personnel properly gather and i
evaluate the informa{ion submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or
persons who manag~1 the system, or those persons directly responsible for
gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my

I '
knowledge and belief, true. accurate. and complete. I am aware Ihat there
are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the I
possibility of fines arid imprisonment for knowing violations. i

II i
Signature: i

,I !

Name,' I
T· I 'I

It e: :'\ " I
\ . ,

All documents and reports to be submitted pursuant to this Compliance; Order
shall be sent to the f~ lowing persons: I

! I
! I
I I
I i

Debra Mood~1 ,
RCRA Compliance and Enforcement Branch (3LC70)
U.S. Envirombental Protection Agency - Region III
1650 Arch Stfeet
Philadelphia, r~ 191 0!-2029

and

I

Louis F. Ramalho
I

Sr. Assistant Ifegional Counsel (3RC30),
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency' Region III

I



1650 Arch Street , '

attention of: I, I
,

Ruth M. Potter I
UST Prograih Manager I
WV Depart4ent of Environmental Protection
60 I 57th Str~et SE I
Charleston, fV 25304 I
Telephone; ~,04-926-0499ext. 1007 I
Fax: 304-926-0457 \ \
Ruth.M.Port~r@wv.gov ,

If ... d ,II b h Rd' I. .h h' C I l'57. actlvlltes un eI1a"en y t e espon ent III connectIOn Wit t IS omp lance
Order or otherwise ihdicate that a release of a regulated substance from any UST
at the Facility may h1ave occurred, Respondent may be required to und~rtake
corrective action putsuant to applicable regulations in WVUSTR Section 33-30-

,I I

2.2.1 which incorpor.,\ates by reference 40 C.F.R. §,280.71. i,

I i I
I ' !

58. Respondent is hereby notified that failure to comply with any of the tems of this
Compliance Order may subject it to imposition of a civil penalty of up to $37,500
for each day of conti\1Ued noncompliance, pursuant to Section 9006(a)(3) of

" ,

RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 699Ie(a)(3), the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996
("DCIA"), and the 's4bsequent Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjust~ent
Rules, 61 Fed. Reg. 69360 (December 3I, 1996) and 69 Fed. Reg. 7121, 7126
(February 13,2004); codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 19. (Enclosure "D" and, "E").

, ; I
I I .

59. The term "days" as used herein shall mean calendar days unless specified
otherwise. :

I I
IV. PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY I

Section 9006(d)(2) of RCJ, 42 U.S.c. § 6991e(d)(2), provides, in relevant p~rt, that
any 0 cr or operator of an undergtpund storage tank who fails ~o comply with any r~quirement
or stan ard promulgated by EPA under Section 9003 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991 c, or that is
part 0 Ian authorized state undergro~nd storage tank program shall be liable for a civilyenalty
not to fxceed$16,OOO for each tanklfor each day of violation. II! accordance with the,
Ad'ustment of Civil Monetar Penalties for Inflation, promulgatcd pursuant to the Debt
CoIlec ion 1m rovement Act of J996 and codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 19. all violations of RCRA
Sectio$ 9006(d)(2), 42 U.S.C. § 69~le(d)(2), occurring on or before March 15,2004 are subject
to a I. i00 increase for inflation, all violations occurring after March 15,2004 are subj~ct to a
1.1723r/o increase for inflation, and ~ll violations occurring after January 12.2009 are subject to
a 1.41 3 increase not to exceed $16.'000 per violation per day. F,or purposes of determining the

I .

I
,



I
amou t of any penalty to be asscss~ld, Section 9006(c) ofRCRA~ 42 U.S.c. § 699Ie(c), requires
EPA t take into account the seriousness of the violation and any good faith efforts to 'comply
with t e applicable requirements. l i, I

, ! I
Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22." 4(a)(4)(ii), Complainant is not proposing a specific penalty

at this time, but will do so at a laterl,~ate after an exchange ofinformation has occurred. See 40
C.F.R § 22.19(a)(4). II I I

II I ,
To develop a proposed penalty for the violations alleged in this Complaint, EPA will take

into a count the particular facts an~l circumstances of this case with specific reference;to EPA's
Nove ber 1990 U.S. EPA Penalty {;uidance for Violations ofUST Regulations ("UST Penalty
GUidarce") (Enclosure C), the AdjJstment of Civil Monetary Penalties for Inflation, 40 C.F.R.
Part I (Enclosure D), and the Amehdments to EPA's Civil Penalty Policies to Implement the
2008 ivil Monet Penalt Inflatibn Ad'ustment Rule (December 29, 2008) (Enclosure E).
These olicies provide a rational, c9nsistent and equitable methodology for applying t~e
statut penalty factors enumcratcej above to particular cases. A,s a basis for calculatipg a
specifi penalty pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. I9(a)(4), Complainant will also consider, among
other ctors, Respondent's ability t~ pay a civil penalty. The burden of raising and I
demonstrating an inability to pay re~ts with the Respondent. In addition, to the extent that facts
and cirlcumstances unknown to Conlplainant at the time of issuance of this Complaint become
known after the Complaint is issuedl such facts and circumstances may also be consid~red as a
basis r adjusting a civil penalty. II : I

This Complaint does not coJstitute a "demand" as that term is defined in the E~ual
Acces to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § :i,f12. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. I4(a)(4)(ii), an explanation
of the tumber and severity of the ViiJ.. lations alleged in this Complaint is set forth below.

II ' i

Failur to rovide release detection for USTs ' i
I : I

The "potential for harm" forlll his violation is "major." Gi~en that USTs are, b;
definit on, underground, it is critical}y important that facility ow~ers and operators utilize
effecti e methods of detecting relea~es from such tanks. The prevention and detection 'of leaks

II !
are the cornerstones of the UST regulatory program. Respondent's failure to use an acceptable
metho of release detection created the possibility of a leak going undetected and harming
human health or the environment. I 1

I :
i •

The "extent of deviation" fOjthiS violation is "major." Failure to monitor an UST for
release at least every 30 days using'an allowable method of relea.se detection typically
constitfutes a "major" deviation frorn the requirements of the RCRA regulatory program.

i ! I
Failur to crform automatic line leak detection annuall. , ;

:1 : \

The "potential for harm" for 'this violation is "major". It is critically important 'that
facility owners and operators utilize ,Fffective methods of detecting releases from USTs and their
associa ed piping. The prevention and detection of leaks are the cornerstones of the UST

i ' ,



I

regula ory program. Respondent's Ifailure to perform an annual line leak detector test 'for the
under. round piping associated wit~ USTs at the Facility present9d a substantial risk to human
health or the environment from a leiU< going undetected. i II

'I '
The "extent of deviation" fdr this violation is also "major~' because it presents k

substa tial deviation from the requl~ements of the RCRA regulatory program. I

Fai!u e to erform annua!line ti Ilhtness testin or month! ~onitorin . II

The "potential for harm" fo Ithis violation is "major". It is critically important that
facilit owners and operators utiliz I effective methods of detecting releases from USTs and their
associ ted piping. The prevention ~nd detection ofJeaks are the cornerstones of the liST

II ' I,

regula ory program. Respondent's failure to perform an annual line tightness test or 11)0nthly
monit ring of underground piping ~ssociated with USTs at the Facility presented a substantial
risk to human health or the environrent from a leak going undet~cted. i

Th " fd' . "J h' . I' . I ' . l, b . Ie extent 0 eVlatlOn Jor t IS VIO atlOn IS a so . major ecause It presents a
substa tial deviation from the requ&ements of the RCRA regulatory program. I

.. II ' i
Fai!u ,e to test cathodic protectioJ system.

,

I ' I
The "potential for harm" fori this violation is "major." The purpose of cathodic protection

testin~ is to ensure·that releases due,lto corrosion are prevented for as long as the steel UST
systellf is used to store regulated su@stances. Respondent failed performed a test of the cathodic
protection system to ensure integrit~ of all the metal part of the UST systems at the Facility.
Respohdent's inaction posed a substantial actual or potential harm to human health and the

. I . h f I ,I. h . Ienvlrohment m t e event 0 a re ease mto t e environment.. I
II , i

The "extent of deviation" fo~ this violation is "major." Failure to perform cat~odic
I 'I

with t e goals of the UST program. I I
I

Fai!u to com I with financial r s onsibili re uirements., !
I '

The "potential for harm" fori this violation is "major." Financial assurances are a key
eleme t of the UST regulatory syste ,ensuring that there are adequate resources available to
proper~y address any releases which have occurred or will occur in the future that may cause
signififant adverse effects to the en: ironment and the regulatory program. ,__ ~ I .

The "extent of deviation" fo~ this violation is "major." U~der t~e UST Penalty Policy,
the fai ure to provide financial assui nces is a substantial deviation from the regulatory program.



i

\

Failn e to permanently close VST systems. i I

lThe "potential for harm" fJ this violation is "major." ~espondent's failure tb
perm ently close the USTs systecls at the Facility pose a substantial actual or potential harm to
huma health and the environment in the event of a release into jhe environment. I

I I I
The "extent of deviation" f~r this violation is "major." Failure to permanently close the

UST ystems at the Facility presenjr a substantial from the reguljtory program. !

V. NOTICE OF] RIGHT TO RE VEST A HEARING
I I '

Respondent may request a Ii! aring before an EPA Admidistrative Law Judge ~nd at such
hearin may contest any material fJct upon which the Complaint is based, contest the!
appro riateness of any compliance ~rder or proposed penalty, andlor assert that Respondent is
entitle to judgment as a matter of \~w. To request a hearing, Re'spondent must file a ~itten
answer ("Answer") within thirty (30) days after service ofthis Complaint. The Answer should
c1earl)f and directly admit, deny or Jxplain each of the factual all~gations contained in'this
Complaint of which Respondent ha~ any knowledge. Where Respondent has no knowledge of a
partie lar factual allegation and so $tates, such a statement is deemed to be a denial of the
allega ion. The Answer should conbin: (I) the circumstances or arguments which are, alleged to
consti ute the grounds of any defen~e; (2) the facts which Respondent disputes; (3) thJ basis for
oppos'ng any proposed relief; and (~) a statement of whether a hearing is requested. All material
facts n t denied in the Answer will be considered to be admitted.' ,

II

Failure of the Respondent tdl admit, denv or explain any material allegation in ;he
Com laint shall constitute an admis'Sion b Res ondent of such aile ation. Failure to Answer
may r~sult in the filing of a Motion for Default Order and the possible issuance of a Default
Order'm osin the enalties proooJed herein without further pro,ceedings. i

Any hearing requested and 'ranted will be conducted in ~ccordance with the I
Conso idated Rules. a copy of whic~ has been enclosed with this ,Complaint (Enclosur,e "A").
Respo dent must send any Answer lmd request for a hearing to the attention of: i

II " 'I

Regio'nal Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) ~
I ,

U.S. ~PA Region III
1650 f-rch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029. '

lnaa-ai ion, please Semi-a-copynfJY-Answenmd/OfTeqUest for a-hearing to the attention of:
Iii:

Louis ,F. Ramalho
Sr. A;kistant Regional Counsel
U.S. ~PA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philad lphia, PA 19103-2029.

I

I



VI. SE TLEMENT CON}'ERENCE I

Complainant encourages Jlement of this proceeding at any time after issuanJe of the
Comp aint if such settlement is con~istent with the provisions and objectives of RCRA. Whether
or not hearing is requested, Respo~dent may request a settlement conference with th6
Complainant to discuss the allegatiins of the Complaint, and the amount of the proposed
civil p nally. HOWEVER, A REQUE~T FOR A SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE DOES NOT RELIEVE
THE R SPONDENT OF ITS RESPONSI'BILITY TO FILE A TIMELY ANSWER. I

II ! I
In the event settlement is rdbhed, its terms shall be expressed in a written Consent

Agreer,ent prepared by ComplainJt, signed by the parties, and incorporated into a Final Order
signedlby the Regional Administrat ,! r or his designee. The execution of such a Conserit
Agree!ent shall constitute a waiver! of Respondent's right to contest the allegations o~the
Compl int and its right to appeal th proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent
Agree ent. I 'I I

1
! ! I, , ,

If you wish to arrange a settl ment conference, please contact Louis F. Ramalho. Senior
Assist nt Regional Counsel, at (215~ 814-2681 prior to the expir~tion of the thirty (30) day
period Ifollowing service of this ConJplaint. Once again, however, such a request for asettlement
conferJnce does not relieve Respondent of its responsibility to file Answer(s) within thirty (30)
days f< Ilowing service of this Compbint. !

~ ,

II "i
Please note that the Quick R€solution settlement procedures set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 22.18

do not pply to this proceeding becaLse the Complaint seeks a compliance order. See 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.1 (a)(l). t Ii

I ! I i
II. SEPARATION OF FU' CTIONS AND EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

I,I I i,

The following Agency offic~k and the staffs thereof, are designated as the trial staff to
repres t the Agency as the party in l~his case: the Region III Office of Regional Coun~el. the
Region III Land and Chemicals Division, and the Office of the EPA Assistant Administrator for
Enforc ment and Compliance Assur~nce. Commencing from the date of issuance of this
Compl int until issuance of a final a~ency decision in this case, neither the Administrator,
memb rs of the Environmental App~als Board, Presiding Officer, Regional Administrator, nor
Region\ I Ju~icial Offi~er, ~ay have'!I~n ex parle communication with the trial staff or the me~it~
of any issue Involved In thiS proceed,' ng. Please be adVised that the Consolidated Rules prohibit

I . .

I



Dated

I
!
i

d· . f h .1 f . h h h d" i banye parte ISCUSSlOn 0 t e men~s 0 a case WIt ,among ot ers, teA mlmstrator, mem ers
of the Enviromnental Appeals Bo~d, Presiding Officer, JudicialOfficer, Regional :
Admi istrator, Regional Judicial Officer, or any other person who is likely to advise these

offid I, 0" My d~I,I"" I" <hi, 1~di"g """ I'~M~ of <hil Com,'"'"'. ,

~t-~
Abraham Ferdas, Director ......
Land and Chemicals Division
U.S. EPA Region III

A. Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22
B. WVUSTR, Parts :b-30-1 through 33-30-4.6, and

" ,40 C.F.R. Part 28~ (1995 ed.) I
I iC. UST Penalty Gui ance ,

D. Civil Monetary P~nalty lnflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19
E. Amendments to EPA's Civil Penalty Policies to 1mplement the 2008 Civil
Monetar Penalt lnflation Ad'ustment Rule (December 29,2008)



(\
!

Louis F. R alho

Senior At'tant Reg.ional Counsel
U.S. EPA l Region III
Counsel r Complainant

!I

i

I
I ,

CERTIFICATE OF SERVIC~ I

I, the undersigned, hereby ~ertifY that, on June 30, 201 I,'the original and one ;rue and
corre t copy of the foregoing Administrative Complaint, Compliance Order and Notice of
Oppo unity for Hearing was hand~delivered to and filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk
(3RC@0), U.S. EPA Region III, 16~0 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and that a true and
correJt copies of the Administrativ6 Complaint and its enclosures were sent via Federal Express,
.'1 fi' d 'l hfil' , Islgnalre con Irrnahon requeste upon t e 01 OWIng:! i

, ,
Ms. ndrea Simmons I I
Exec~trix of the Estate of Roger Go Fussell I
272 SE Dustin Terrace :
Lake titY, FL 32025 i

John J

t
Wallace, IV, Esquire

Walla e Law Offices L.C., Inc.
14 So th Randolph Avenue
Elkin" West Virginia 26241 I

Heath~r M. Weese, Fiduciary Comrissioner
Fiducirry Commissioner and Hearihg Master
600 S(J)uth Randolph Avenue, Suite! 1
Elkins~ West Virginia 26241 I

I

I

I


